Opening up Rural Kenya

KENYA RURAL ROADS AUTHORITY
MACHAKOS REGION

TENDER DOCUMENT

FOR

ROUNTINE MAINTENANCE & SPOT IMPROVEMENT OF

IHANI-KITHYOKO

TENDER NO. KeRRA/08/MKS/39/D1266/2-20-24|25-086

FOR THE CONTRACTORS REGISTERED UNDER
(KeRRA/W/2 OR KeRRA/W/3)

NOVEMBER, 2024

REGIONAL DIRECTOR
MACHAKOS REGION DIRECTOR GENERAL,
KENYA RURAL ROADS AUTHORITY KENYA RURAL ROADS AUTHORITY

P.O. BOX 874-90100, P.O. BOX 48151 - 00100,
MACHAKOS, NAIROBL







TABLE OF CONTENTS

INVITATION TO TENDER .....oooiieeetetse ettt sttt ettt et e sae b e ste e et e st eseenaeseesestententenneneas \
SECTION I - INSTRUCTIONS TO TENDERERS .......ooiiiiieieieese et 1
AL GENEIAI PIOVISIONS ...viiitiitiitete ettt bbbt b e bt bbbt e et e b e bt e be bbb neas 1
1 SCOPE OF TENUET ...ttt bbb e bbbt E bbbt b bbbttt b et 1
2. Fraud @nd COITUDTION .......viieiiiieee ettt b bt bbbttt b b n e 1
3. o TTo Lo LR =T 0o (=] €T OSSO T P UPTP 1
4. Eligible Goods, EQUIPMENT, QNG SEIVICES ......oiviiiiiiiiecie ettt sttt et et e sbesreeseente e 3
5. Tenderer's RESPONSIDIITIES. .........oiiiiii et 3
B. Contents Of TENAEr DOCUMENTS ......cviiiiie ittt sttt st este e st e stesteeneesreeneenteareeneensens 3
6. Sections OF TENAEN DOCUIMENT ........oiuiiiieieiiii sttt et b bbb e et b e bt be st st e e 3
7. TR | PO SPO USSR PSPPI 4
8. PrE-TENUEE IMEELING. ... ectiitieti ittt ettt et e et e et e s b e et e s be e st e st e e be e st e sbe e st e beeseetesbeessesbeessenbesreeneenreans 4
9. Clarification and amendment of TENAEr DOCUMENTS ........ccveiiiiiieieiiiierie e eraeneesreas 5
10.  Amendment Of TENEr DOCUMENTS. .......cuiiiiieiteitesieie ettt sttt et b et e s seabesbeebesbesbesbeeenes 5
C.  Preparation Of TENAEIS ..ottt sttt e b e st b e st et e sb et e et ebesbebessebe e beneee 5
T o I o) B =T 0o [=T g T T TSSOSO PSP OR P PTPPPOP 5
12 LANQUAGE OF TENAET ...tttk b bbbt bbbt bbbttt 5
13, Documents COmMPrisSing the TENAEN .........ccociiviiiiiie ittt b e bt se et se s b resrebe e anis 5
14, Form Of Tender aNd SCREUUIES ........c..oiiiiiiiiiie ettt bbbt bbb s 6
15, AILEINALIVE TENOEIS. .....eiveteieiiiiiiteieiesee sttt ettt b bbbt b bbbkttt bbbt ne ettt 6
16, Tender PriCeS ant DISCOUNLS ......ccuuiieiieieeiesieeteeieseeseestesteeseestaaseeseesteesaesteaseessesseessesseaneeseeaseessesseassensesseessensenns 6
17. Currencies Of TeNder and PAYIMENT...........cuiiiiieiiieieeee bbb b et benn e enes 7
18.  Documents Comprising the Technical Proposal ..o s 7
19.  Documents Establishing the Eligibility and Qualifications of the Tenderer

20.  Period of Validity OF TENUEIS. ..ottt st sttt et ettt e st et e et re b ebesrebe s beneaee 8
21, TENOEE SECUIILY ..voviitiiiiite ettt ettt ettt et et e s be et e st e ebe et e sbeess e besaeesb e beesbesbeebeesbesbeess e beeaeesbesbeensesteetseseearaas 8
22.  Format and SIgNING OF TENOET ...ttt bbbt bbbttt 9
D Sealing and Marking OF TENUEIS .......cooiiieiie bbbttt 9
23, Sealing and Marking Of TENAEIS .......ccocuiiieiicee ettt bbbt se b e et se bt e sr et e bene e 9
24.  Deadling for SUDMISSION OF TENAEIS. .....cciviuiiiieiriee ettt sttt se s esaeseseenenennas 10
i - 1 (- =T 0T LTSRS 10
26.  Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification Of TENGEIS.........ccccvcieiiiiiiiii e 10
S -2 To (=T @] 1= o 1o o TSSOSO PR RUPOPRP 10
E Evaluation and CompariSOn Of TENAEIS..........ccciviiiiiii ittt be et ee 11
28, COMIAENEIALIEY ...ttt bbbt bRt bbbt E e bR b e n et 11
e I O P § et Y 1oy a o) Al 410 (=] £ T 11
30. Deviations, ReServations, AN OMISSIONS .....coiieevereeeeeeeseseeereetteeesssee e rreeteessssee e rreeteessssaeerrreeteeesssseerrreereees 12
3L Determination Of RESPONSIVENESS ......cceiiiiiarieierieeieete e ste e e te et et seeeseesteaseeeeateaneesseeseeneesseaneenseareeneennens 12
32, Non-material NON-CONTOMMITIES ...ttt ettt et e st e ere e e steeneesneereeneenee e 12
G T AN 11010 T= (o L g o] £ S PSSS TR PST 12
34, CoNVErsion t0 SINGIE CUIMENCY .....oiviiiiieieiii ettt bbb bttt ettt 13
35, Margin of Preference ant RESEIVALIONS ........c..oiiiieiiiiiie ettt ee st eseesreeneenneereeneenee e 13
SIS W oot ] 1 {101 o) £SO S T PPT 13
7. EVAIUALION OF TENMUEIS .....veiiicieiitee ettt sttt b et s bt e et e s e be e et e se st be s e be e atereseesenennn 13
38, COMPAIISON OF TEINTETS. ...ttt bbb bbbt bbbt bbbt b ettt bbb 14
39, ADNOIMAIY LOW TEIUETS........ecueiiiiiiieieiei ettt bbbttt bbbt bbbttt 14
40.  ADNOIMAIlY High TENAEIS ......cviiie ettt et e st st e se et e s besbe e enesbestesee e enesresreneas 14
41, Unbalanced and/or Front-Loaded TENUEIS .........cei ettt e s s 14
42, Qualifications Of the TENMUBIET .........oii ettt sttt e et esteete e e areeneenbeereeneenne e 15
T = 1ot Y L[N Eo U=t I =T 0o [T OSSPSR 15
44.  Procuring Entity's Right to Accept Any Tender, and to Reject Any or All Tenders ........cocooveveiviceiiinencennn 15



F. YN = Lo oY E O] 011 - (6: AR 15

= 1o [ O (=] - WSSOSO 15
46.  Notice of Intention to enter INt0 @ CONIIACT..........cciiiiriieieer e 15
I =110 1 1 | =T To o [T PP 16
48.  Debriefing by the Procuring ENTILY ........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt bbbt nne e 16
T I (= 0 AN T (o ST 16
50, SIGNING OF CONTIACE .....evitiiit ettt bbb bbb ettt b b 16
51, ApPPOINTMENT OF AGJUICALON. ... vttt ettt 16
52, PEIfOrMANCE SECUILY. ...iiuiiiiie ittt s ettt e et e et e s beese e beeae e et e e teeeesbeeseenbesreeseenreans 16
53.  Publication of Procurement CONTIACL. .........c..ceiuerieriiieieisise sttt sb e 17
53.  Procurement Related COMPIAINTS. ........ooiiiiiiiiiee e et 17
SECTION II-TENDER DATA SHEET(TDS) ...cutitiitiieieieeisie sttt sttt 18
SECTION 111 - EVALUATION AND QUALIFY ON CRITERIA.....ccoo ettt 23
1. (Ce T o B o 0V o] oSSR 23
2. Preliminary examination for Determination 0f RESPONSIVENESS ..........ccveviiiiriieriiesieseeeee s 23
3. Tender EVAIUATION (ITT 35) ...iiuiiiiiieieieiei ettt bbbttt b b 23
4, IMIUIEIPIE CONEIACTS. ...ttt ettt e et et e s b e e sb e be e se et eebe et e sbe e s e e sbesseesbesbaessesteetaentenreas 23
5. AIErNALIVE TENAEIS (ITT L3, 1) i iiiiiieiiee sttt et et e e et e be e st e st e eba e besbeeneestesneeseenreans 24
6. Margin of Preference is N0t appliCabIe............cooiiiiiiiie e 24
7. Post qualification and Contract award (ITT 39), more Specifically..........cccuvriiiiiriiiiiiiieieecese e 24
SECTION IV — TENDERING FORMS ..ottt ettt sttt sttt nae s 25
QUALIFICATION FORMS. ...ttt sttt e et s e st b e b b s et b et e e ne b e e beebesbe st e nae e enes 28

1. FOIM EQU. EQUIPMENT ..ccuiiiiie ittt ettt sttt et et e e e st e e ts e besbeessesbeeseesteebaetesbeensestenneas 28

2 o 1 011t RSP PP PRI 29

A, FORM PER-2:.. .ottt ettt sttt h bbb b b e st e Rt e Rt e bt e btk e e b et e et e bt st et e et et e e e e 30
5. TENDERERS QUALIFICATION WITHOUT PRE-QUALIFICATION.....ccciiiiieieieieeeeese e 32

Ot I Tt PR SUPTR 32

FORIM ELI =12 .ttt bttt s bbbttt et e st e st et e et et e st e e et et enes 33

FORIM CON — 2 .ttt ettt a1 s e ek e s e e b2 et et e e e s e e R e et e e Re e b et et e e et e st eseebeeteebesre st e ne s enee 34
5.4 FORM FIN — 3. oottt sttt ettt et e s e st e Rt b e b e e bt e et et et e st e ne e b e e neebenee et e nae e enes 36
5.5 FORM FIN — 3 2. ittt sttt et a ettt s e Rt e Rt bt bt e bt e et et e e st e ne et e e beebe st et e nae e enes 37
5.6 FORM FIN — 3.3: ittt sttt ettt sttt e st e st e Rt b bt e b e b et e et e st e ne e b e e reebesbe st e nae e enes 38
ST A o O 121V | I 1 ST ST 38
5.8 FORM EXP = 4Lttt ettt e et e et e e e bt e e et e e e e at e e eat e e e tee e anbeeabeeeeteeeenteeeanreeanteas 39
5.9 FORM EXP = 4.2(8) ..veiueiteiieieieiieiieie sttt sttt sttt ettt sttt e e et e st e st e me et e b e et e st et et et e st e ne e b e e neebe st e b e nae e enes 40
5.1 FORM EXP = 4.2(D) c.ovvoveoeeeeeeeeeeeeoesioseeesses s seees s ss s ns s ss s sssnssan s nssnsssnssanssansnnsnes 41
OTHER FORIMS ...ttt sttt s et e st te e et s e e e s e st e Rt e Rt e b e e Ee e b e s e et et e s e e s e aneaneeneebeneenseneeneenen 42
6. FORM OF TENDER ... .ottt ettt e e et e et e e st e e saa e e s at e e e ebe e e anbeeeaeeeabbeeebeeesnneeanes 42

a) TENDERER'S ELIGIBILITY- CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS QUESTIONNAIRE........c..ccccovenineen. 45

b)  CERTIFICATE OF INDEPENDENT TENDER DETERMINATION.....cccccoiiiiiieieieeceee e 48

C) SELF-DECLARATION FORM - SELF DECLARATION OF THE TENDERER...........ccoovciiieiins 49

d)  APPENDIX 1- FRAUD AND CORRUPTION ..ottt 52
7. FORM OF TENDER SECURITY - DEMAND BANK GUARANTEE ........coooiiiii e 54
8. FORM OF TENDER SECURITY (INSURANCE GUARANTEE).......cccoiiiiieere st 55
9. FORM OF TENDER-SECURING DECLARATION ..ottt ittt sttt st 56
10.  APPENDIX TO TENDER .....ocoiiiiiieieieiee sttt sttt se ettt ste s e e e s eneeseasestensenneeeneas 57
PART Il - WORK REQUIREMENTS ... .ottt bbbttt bbb 58



SECTION V - DRAWINGS ..ottt bbbt h et nn e et nen e nn s 58

SECTION VI - SPECIFICATIONS ...ttt et bbbttt ettt 58
SECTION VI - BILLS OF QUANNTITIES ... .ottt sttt st enesne e beseennenaeeenes 59
O O 1 o] 1= ox £ Y-SR PSRRI 59
2. DAY WOIK SCREAUIE ... et 59
K T S (01 o] g LU 0 ST SP RSP 59
4. The Bills OF QUANTITIES ......coiiiiiiiiiee sttt e be e et e steeseesteeneesaesreeneenre e 59
PART I11-CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND CONTRACT FORMS.......cccoiiiitiinieeeieeese e 60
SECTION VI - GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT ....otitiieieieieieeee et seens 60
A. General
1 D3 110N 18 (o) s PP URUR USSP 61
2 T CeTa o= LT o [P OSUOSTSOTRPN 61
3 (I Ta o U T T=IR= T o I APPSR 62
4. Project Manager's DECISIONS .........ccueuiiiirterieieieieiei sttt sttt b bbbttt sb b e n e 63
5. DRIBGALION ...ttt bbb 63
6 (@70 01001110 7= 1[0 01T 63
7 SUDCONTIACTING ...c.ve ittt et et et e et e st e e se e besae e b e s te et e sbeebeesbeareentesta e e e steares 63
8 (@11 1= g O 1 7= Tod (0] £SO PTPP 63
9. Personnel and EQUIPMENT ........iiiiiee ittt sttt e e e st et e e e sbeese e besreereste e e e nreers 63
10.  Procuring Entity's and CONtraCtor's RISKS .........c.ciuiiiiiiiiiiieieieses s 63
11, Procuring ENTITY'S RISKS ......ooviiiiiiiiiiie et 63
I 0 01 - Yo (o] R B ] TS SS P TRSS 64
130 INSUFBINCE ...tttk h sttt b e e h a4 h bt 4 h bt 4R b e e bt e bt e b e e b et e b bt e ne e e bt e ekt e nbe e e nn e e ns 64
O | (=3 I L SRS 64
15.  Contractor t0 CONSLIUCT the WOTKS..........ceuiiiriiiniinnisisss st 64
16. The Works to Be Completed by the Intended Completion DAte ..........ccovvveiiiereiiiiie e 64
17.  Approval by the ProjeCt MANAGET .........ccoiiiieieiiiii ittt 64
TS 1 (=1 TSP PP PSSP P R UPTPR PP 65
T B o001V =T g 1= SRR 65
20.  POSSESSION OF T8 SILE ....veviiiieiieiisiceti ettt b ettt e e e 65
21, ACCESS 10 ThE SHTE.....eiiiieeicieiee ettt ettt ettt e b et et et R e e n e b nre e et ens 65
22, Instructions, INSPECLIONS aN AUGITS.........oiiiieiiieie e re e te e aesneeeeseeenes 65
23. Appointment Of the AJUAICALION .........cciiiiiiiei e 65
24.  Settlement Of Claims and DISPULES........cveiviiiieiiiii it 66
25, Fraud and COITUPLION ......oouiiiciiece ettt sttt s e b e st e sa e st e ebe et esbeesbesbesnsebesta e s esraenes 68
2 T I 10 T O o £ o SO S POS USSR 68
1. o 100 ] = o o PSSR 68
2. Extension of the Intended Completion Date...........ccoiiiiiiiii i 69
K N ot ot=] 11 -1 £ o] o OSSR 69
4. Delays Ordered by the ProjeCt MAnAQET.........cceiueieiiiiinisie et 69
5. MaNagEMENT IMEBETINGS ...ttt bbb bt b bbb b 69
6.  EAIIY WAIMING ..ottt st bbb st b et b e bt e st et e et re st be et e e e bene e re s 70



(T O 1 F- 1 1) 3V @0 o1 1 o] PSPPSR 69
1. IAENEITYING DETECTS ...ttt ettt e te e st e s be e s e e s bease e beete et e stearaenbenreas 69
2. 1L TSSO OO 69
3. (OfaT =Tt o] o) D =) =T od 3PP 69
4. UNCOITECLEU DBTECES ...ttt bbbttt b e bbbt et s et ettt et e 69
D B O 1 A O] | o] SO S SRS PR VPPN 70
1. (000 011 = Tod B oSS 70
2. Changes IN the CONIIACE PIICE. ....civiiiiiiie ettt sb e s et e s e et e s be et e sbeeneestesreeneenre e 70
3. RV L4 Lo OSSO VTSSO PSSP 71
4. CaSN FIOW FOBCASES. .....vetiiiiiite ettt bbbt b bbb bbbt n bbbt e 72
5. PaYMENE COItHICAIES . .euviriiiiieiiiisiie ittt e et b e R et e et R e e Rt b e n e n b e e s e n e e nnenne e 72
6. PAYIMENTS ... e R R R R R R Rt R e n s 72
7. COMPENSALION EVENES ...ttt b bbb sttt b b 73
8. TOX ettt R £ bR R bR R bbb 73
9. CUITENCY Y OF PAYMENL.....eiiiiiiie ettt ettt st e et e et e s b e e se e beaae e stesteebesbeeneeseesreeneenteans 73
O o 4 Tor= B Ao U 0011 o TSSOSO PP 73
T L o1 1 o] 1 ST PRT 74
12, LiQUICAEA DABMAGES. .. ...eveeietesieiieiietisie stttk b bbb h bbb bbbttt ettt bt bt 74
G T = T UL TSP P PSPPI 74
L4, AGVANCE PAYIMENT.......oiiiieie ettt sttt e s be et et e e s b e st e et e e besbe e st e s beeaeeebesbe e b e sbeessebesreeseesreans 74
TS =T ot (=SOSR 75
T B - VALY 0] TSRS PPT 75
17, COSE OF REPAITS ...ttt bbb bbbt bbb bbbt e et bt bbbt 75
E.  FiNISNING The CONTIACT ..ot bbbttt snen e 75
1. (@0 0] o] [=1 1o o [P SRSSRSPUPRP 75
2. TAKING OVET ...ttt bbb E bt e b e b b e e bt bbbt e st e bt e bt b e bt b et ben e 75
3. LT L oo o] | SO ST 75
4, Operating and Maintenance MaNUAIS. ............ooiiiiiiiie e 75
5. L= L0 LA o TSRS US RO 76
6. Payment UPON TEIMINALION ........oiiiiiiieiece ettt et e e b et e se e st e ebeesbesbees b e s besaeebesta e s e sraeres 76
7. 0] 01T 1 Y SRR 76
8. Release frOM PEITOIMMEANCE .........ccvoiiie ittt ettt e s te et e te s reeseente e e e steeteeeesreenaessennes 76
SECTION IX - SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRARCT .o ctii ettt ettt ettt 77
SECTION X - CONTRACT FORMS ...ttt ettt e e b e et e e st e e st e e e nae e e stae e s teeesneee e 88
FORM No. 1 - NOTIFICATION OF INTENTION TO AWARD. ...t sessssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessens 80
FORM NO. 2 — REQUEST FOR REVIEW ...ttt ettt sttt 83
FORM NO. 3 - LETTER OF AWARD .....ootiiiiie ittt sttt see st e s ase et neebestestenaeeenes 83
FORM NO. 4 - CONTRACT AGREEMENT ...ttt ettt ettt et e sae e e s tte et e e sneeeenaeas 84
FORM No. 5 - PERFORMANCE SECURITY [Option 1 - Unconditional Demand Bank Guarantee].................... 85
FORM No. 6- PERFORMANCE SECURITY [Option 2— Performance Bond] .........cccocvvivieiiiiiieincene e 86
FORM No. 7- ADVANCE PAYMENT SECURITY ...ttt 88
FORM No. 8- RETENTION MONEY SECURITY .ottt ettt 87
FORM No. 9- BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP DISCLOSURE FORM ......oooiiiiiiiie ettt 87



INVITATION TO TENDER

Kenya Rural Roads Authority, Machakos Region,
P.O. Box 874-90100,

MACHAKOS.

Email : machakos@kerra.go.ke

BUDGET PROVISION. : Ksh : 4,571,249.93

TENDER NAME: ROUTINE MAINTENANCE SPOT IMPROVEMENT OF I1ANI-KITHYOKO

TENDER No: KeRRA/08/MKS/39/D1266/2-20-24|25-086

1

10.

11.

The (Kenya Rural Roads Authority-Machakos Region) invites sealed tenders from eligible candidates
for (Routine Maintenance and Spot Improvement of IIANI-KITHYOKO

Tendering will be conducted under a standardized tender document. Tendering is open to all qualified
and interested Tenderers.

This Tender is OPEN to Contractors Registered in Machakos Region under KeRRA/W/2 OR
KeRRA/W/3.

Qualified and interested tenderers may obtain further information and inspect the Tender Documents
during office hours [0900 t01600 hours] at the address given below.

The Regional Director,
Kenya Rural Roads Authority
Machakos Region,

P.O. Box 874-90100, MACHAKOS.
Kenya.

Email:machakos@kerra.go.ke

Tender documents may be obtained electronically from the www.tenders.go.ke and Authority’s
Website www.kerra.go.ke. Tender documents obtained electronically will be free of charge.

Tender documents may be obtained electronically from the Authority’s Website (www.kerra.go.ke).
Tender documents obtained electronically will be free of charge.

Tender documents may be viewed and downloaded for free from the website (www.kerra.go.ke).
Tenderers who download the tender document must forward their particulars immediately to
(procurementhg@Kkerra.go.ke) to facilitate any further clarification or addendum.

All Tender Security shall not be required.
The Tenderer shall chronologically serialize all pages of the tender documents submitted.

Completed tenders must be delivered to the address below on or before [9™ December,2024) at
11.00am. Electronic Tenders [ will not] be permitted.

Tenders will be opened immediately after the deadline date and time specified above or any deadline
date and time specified later. Tenders will be publicly opened in the presence of the Tenderers'
designated representatives who choose to attend at the address below.


mailto:machakos@kerra.go.ke
http://www.tenders.go.ke/

12, Late tenders will be rejected.

The addresses referred to above are:

A. Address for obtaining further information and for purchasing tender documents

Vi

Kenya Rural Roads Authority- Machakos Region,
Along Machakos Kyumbi Road, Opp. The Machakos School
P.O Box 874-90100 Machakos, Kenya.

The Officer to be contacted:

Senior Chain Management Officer-Machakos Region,
Email : machakos@kerra.go.ke

Tel : 020-2403016) ;

Address for Submission of Tenders. (Office or Tender Box)

Physical address for hand Courier Delivery to office or Tender Box

The Regional Director,

Kenya Rural Roads Authority-
Machakos Region,

P.O. Box 874-90100, MACHAKOS.
Email:machakos@kerra.go.ke

Address for Opening of Tenders.

The Regional Director,

Kenya Rural Roads Authority-
Machakos Region,

P.0O. Box 874-90100, MACHAKOS.
Email:machakos@kerra.go.ke

REGIONAL DIRECTOR

KENYA RURAL ROADS AUTHORITY - MACHAKOS REGION




PART 1 - TENDERING PROCEDURES
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SECTION I: INSTRUCTIONS TO TENDERERS

A

1.

2.

General Provisions

Scope of Tender

11 The Procuring Entity as defined in the Appendix to Conditions of Contract invites tenders for Works
Contract as described in the tender documents. The name, identification, and number of lots
(contracts) of this Tender Document are specified in the TDS.

Fraud and Corruption

2.1 The Procuring Entity requires compliance with the provisions of the Public Procurement and Asset
Disposal Act, 2015, Section 62 “Declaration not to engage in corruption”. The tender submitted by a
person shall include a declaration that the person shall not engage in any corrupt or fraudulent practice
and a declaration that the person or his or her sub-contractors are not debarred from participating in
public procurement proceedings.

2.2 The Procuring Entity requires compliance with the provisions of the Competition Act 2010, regarding
collusive practices in contracting. Any tenderer found to have engaged in collusive conduct shall be
disqualified and criminal and/or civil sanctions may be imposed. To this effect, Tenders shall be
required to complete and sign the “Certificate of Independent Tender Determination” annexed to the
Form of Tender.

2.3 Unfair Competitive Advantage - Fairness and transparency in the tender process require that the
firms or their Affiliates competing for a specific assignment do not derive a competitive advantage
from having provided consulting services related to this tender. To that end, the Procuring Entity shall
indicate in the Data Sheet and make available to all the firms together with this tender document all
information that would in that respect give such firm any unfair competitive advantage over competing
firms.

2.4 Unfair Competitive Advantage -Fairness and transparency in the tender process require that the
Firms or their Affiliates competing for a specific assignment do not derive a competitive advantage
from having provided consulting services related to this tender being tendered for. The Procuring
Entity shall indicate in the TDS firms (if any) that provided consulting services for the contract being
tendered for. The Procuring Entity shall check whether the owners or controllers of the Tenderer are
same as those that provided consulting services. The Procuring Entity shall, upon request, make
available to any tenderer information that would give such firm unfair competitive advantage over
competing firms.

Eligible Tenderers

3.1 ATenderer may be a firm that is a private entity, a state-owned enterprise or institution subjectto ITT
3.7 or any combination of such entities in the form of a joint venture (JV) under an existing agreement
or with the intent to enter into such an agreement supported by a letter of intent. Public employees and
their close relatives (spouses, children, brothers, sisters and uncles and aunts) are not eligible to
participate in the tender. In the case of a joint venture, all members shall be jointly and severally liable
for the execution of the entire Contract in accordance with the Contract terms. The JV shall nominate
a Representative who shall have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all
the members of the JV during the tendering process and, in the event the JV is awarded the Contract,
during contract execution. The maximum number of JV members shall be specified in the TDS.

3.2 Public Officers of the Procuring Entity, their Spouses, Child, Parent, Brothers or Sister. Child, Parent,
Brother or Sister of a Spouse, their business associates or agents and firms/organizations in which they
have a substantial or controlling interest shall not be eligible to tender or be awarded a contract. Public
Officers are also not allowed to participate in any procurement proceedings.

3.3 A Tenderer shall not have a conflict of interest. Any tenderer found to have a conflict of interest shall
be disqualified. Atenderer may be considered to have a conflict of interest for the purpose of this
8



tendering process, if the tenderer:

a)  Directlyorindirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with another tenderer;
or

b)  Receivesor hasreceived any direct or indirect subsidy from another tenderer; or
c)  Hasthesame legal representative as another tenderer; or

d)  Hasarelationship with another tenderer, directly or through common third parties, that puts itina
position to influence the tender of another tenderer, or influence the decisions of the Procuring
Entity regarding this tendering process; or

e)  Any of its affiliates participated as a consultant in the preparation of the design or technical
specifications of the works that are the subject of the tender; or

f)  any of its affiliates has been hired (or is proposed to be hired) by the Procuring Entity as Engineer
for the Contract implementation; or

g)  Would be providing goods, works, or non-consulting services resulting from or directly related
to consulting services for the preparation or implementation of the contract specified in this
Tender Document or

h)  Hasaclose business or family relationship with a professional staff of the Procuring Entity who:

i) aredirectly or indirectly involved in the preparation of the Tender document or
specifications of the Contract, and/or the Tender evaluation process of such contract; or

ii)  would be involved in the implementation or supervision of such Contract unless the
conflict stemming from such relationship has been resolved in a manner acceptable to the
Procuring Entity throughout the tendering process and execution of the Contract.

3.4 Atenderer shall not be involved in corrupt, coercive, obstructive, collusive or fraudulent practice. A
tenderer that is proven to have been involved any of these practices shall be automatically disqualified.

3.5 A Tenderer (either individually or as a JV member) shall not participate in more than one Tender,
except for permitted alternative tenders. This includes participation as a subcontractor in other Tenders.
Such participation shall result in the disqualification of all Tenders in which the firm is involved. A firm
that is not a tenderer or a JV member may participate as a subcontractor in more than one tender.
Members of a joint venture may not also make an individual tender, be a subcontractor in a separate
tender or be part of another joint venture for the purposes of the same Tender.

3.6 ATenderer may have the nationality of any country, subject to the restrictions pursuant to ITT 4.8.A
Tenderer shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the Tenderer is constituted,
incorporated or registered in and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that
country, as evidenced by its articles of incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or
association) and its registration documents, as the case may be. This criterion also shall apply to the
determination of the nationality of proposed subcontractors or sub- consultants for any part of the
Contract including related Services.

3.7 Tenderer that has been debarred from participating in public procurement shall be ineligible to tender
or be awarded a contract. The list of debarred firms and individuals is available from the website of
PPRA www.ppra.go.ke.

3.8 Tenderers that are state-owned enterprises or institutions may be eligible to compete and be awarded
a Contract(s) only if they are accredited by PPRA to be (i) a legal public entity of the state
Government and/or public administration, (ii) financially autonomous and not receiving any significant
subsidies or budget support from any public entity or Government, and (iii) operating under commercial
law and vested with legal rights and liabilities similar to any commercial enterprise to enable it compete
with firms in the private sector on an equal basis.

3.9 AFirms and individuals may be ineligible if their countries of origin (a) as a matter of law or official
regulations, Kenya prohibits commercial relations with that country, or (b) by an act of compliance
with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter V11 of the Charter of the
United Nations, Kenya prohibits any import of goods or contracting of works or services from that
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country, or any payments to any country, person, or entity in that country. Atenderer shall provide such
documentary evidence of eligibility satisfactory to the Procuring Entity, as the Procuring Entity shall
reasonably request.

3.10Foreign tenderers are required to source at least forty (40%) percent of their contract inputs (in

supplies, subcontracts and labor) from national suppliers and contractors. To this end, a foreign tenderer
shall provide in its tender documentary evidence that this requirement is met. Foreign tenderers not
meeting this criterion will be automatically disqualified. Information required to enable the Procuring
Entity determine if this condition is met shall be provided in for this purpose is be provided in
“SECTION |11 - EVALUATION AND QUALIFICATION CRITERIA, Item 9.

3.11 Pursuant to the eligibility requirements of ITT 4.10, a tender is considered a foreign tenderer, if the

tenderer is not registered in Kenya or if the tenderer is registered in Kenya and has less than 51 percent
ownership by Kenyan Citizens. JVs are considered as foreign tenderers if the individual member firms
are not registered in Kenya or if are registered in Kenya and have less than 51 percent ownership by
Kenyan citizens. The JV shall not subcontract to foreign firms more than 10 percent of the contract price,
excluding provisional sums.

3.12 The National Construction Authority Act of Kenya requires that all local and foreign contractors be

registered with the National Construction Authority and be issued with a Registration Certificate before
they can undertake any construction works in Kenya. Registration shall not be a condition for tender,
but it shall be a condition of contract award and signature. A selected tenderer shall be given
opportunity to register before such award and signature of contract. Application for registration with
National Construction Authority may be accessed from the website www.nca.go.ke.

3.13 The Competition Act of Kenya requires that firms wishing to tender as Joint Venture undertakings

which may prevent, distort or lessen competition in provision of services are prohibited unless they
are exempt in accordance with the provisions of Section 25 of the Competition Act, 2010. JVs will be
required to seek for exemption from the Competition Authority. Exemption shall not be a condition for
tender, but it shall be a condition of contract award and signature. A JV tenderer shall be given
opportunity to seek such exemption as a condition of award and signature of contract. Application for
exemption from the Competition Authority of Kenya may be accessed from the website www.cak.go.ke

3.14 A Kenyan tenderer shall provide evidence of having fulfilled his/her tax obligations by producing a

valid tax clearance certificate or tax exemption certificate issued by the Kenya Revenue Authority.

4.  Eligible Goods, Equipment, and Services

4.1 Goods, equipment and services to be supplied under the Contract may have their origin in any country

that is not eligible under ITT 3.9. At the Procuring Entity's request, Tenderers may be required to
provide evidence of the origin of Goods, equipment and services.

4.2 Any goods, works and production processes with characteristics that have been declared by the relevant
national environmental protection agency or by other competent authority as harmful to human beings

and to the environment shall not be eligible for procurement.
5. Tenderer's Responsibilities

5.1 The tenderer shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of his/her tender, and
the Procuring Entity will in no case be responsible or liable for those costs.

5.2 The tenderer, at the tenderer's own responsibility and risk, is encouraged to visit and examine the Site of

the Works and its surroundings, and obtain all information that may be necessary for preparing the

tender and entering into a contract for construction of the Works. The costs of visiting the Site shall be

at the tenderer's own expense.

5.3 The Tenderer and any of its personnel or agents will be granted permission by the Procuring Entity to

enter upon its premises and lands for the purpose of such visit. The Tenderer shall indemnify the
Procuring Entity against all liability arising from death or personal injury, loss of or damage to
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property, and any other losses and expenses incurred as a result of the inspection.

5.4 The tenderer shall provide in the Form of Tender and Qualification Information, a preliminary
description of the proposed work method and schedule, including charts, as necessary or required.

B. Contents of Tender Documents

6. Sections of Tender Document

6.1 The tender document consists of Parts 1, 2, and 3, which includes all the sections specified below, and
which should be read in conjunction with any Addenda issued in accordance with ITT 8.

PART 1 Tendering Procedures

i) Section I - Instructions to Tenderers (ITT)

ii)  Section Il - Tender Data Sheet (TDS)

iii)  Section Il - Evaluation and Qualification Criteria
iv)  Section IV - Tendering Forms

PART 2 Works Requirements

i) SectionV - Drawings

ii)  SectionVI- Specifications

iii)  SectionVII - Bills of Quantities

PART 3 Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms
i) Section V111 - General Conditions of Contract (GCC)
ii)  Section IX - Special Conditions of Contract (SC)

iii)  Section X - Contract Forms

6.2 The Invitation to Tender Document (ITT) issued by the Procuring Entity is not part of the Contract
documents.

6.3 Unless obtained directly from the Procuring Entity, the Procuring Entity is not responsible for the
completeness of the Tender document, responses to requests for clarification, the minutes of the pre-
Tender meeting (if any), or Addenda to the Tender document in accordance with ITT 8. In case of any
contradiction, documents obtained directly from the Procuring Entity shall prevail.

The Tenderer is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the Tender
Document and to furnish with its Tender all information and documentation as is required by the
Tender document.

7.  Site Visit

7.1 The Tenderer, at the Tenderer's own responsibility and risk, is encouraged to visit and examine and
inspect the Site of the Required Services and its surroundings and obtain all information that may be
necessary for preparing the Tender and entering into a contract for the Services. The costs of visiting the Site
shall be at the Tenderer's own expense.

8.  Pre-Tender Meeting

8.1 The Procuring Entity shall specify in the TDS if a pre-tender meeting will be held, when and where.
The Procuring Entity shall also specify in the TDS if a pre-arranged pretender site visit will be held and
when. The Tenderer's designated representative is invited to attend a pre-arranged pretender visit of the
site of the works. The purpose of the meeting will be to clarify issues and to answer questions on any
matter that may be raised at that stage.

8.2 The Tenderer is requested to submit any questions in writing, to reach the Procuring Entity not 